JANUARY 2025

BCSTA BYLAWS 2024-2025

BYLAW REVIEW COMMITTEE
PHASE II REPORT







BCSTA BYLAWS (2024-2025)

Bylaw Review Committee - Phase II Report

January 2025

Introduction

In January 2023, the BCSTA Board of Directors passed a motion to reinstate the Ad Hoc Bylaw Review Committee. This committee was tasked with updating and modernizing the Association's by-laws.

As the last review of the bylaws was completed in 2018, the committee determined that the bylaws would be updated in phases. Phase I of the recommendations was presented at the 2024 BCSTA Annual General Meeting. In specific, through three separate Extraordinary Motions, the AGM voted to amend:

Bylaws 4, 8, 11a, 10c, 10e, 10f, and 7l

This was a significant first step in this work. In Phase II, the work continues to modernize the language and have the BCSTA Bylaws align with current legislation, and to reflect practices that have evolved over the past 20 years and more.

Committee Members and Board Liaison

Meeting Chair David Swankey Chilliwack

Committee Members: Janet Fraser Vancouver

Gabriel Liosis Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows

Floyd Krishan Bulkey Valley

Lenora Trenaman Kootenay Lake

Board of Directors Liaison: Tracy Loffler Mission

Staff Support: Carmen Batista Deputy CEO

Maggie Yuen Executive Administrator

Consultant: Jordan Tinney Jordan Tinney Consulting

Terms of Reference for this Committee

Purpose

To review BCSTA's bylaws and make recommendations to the BCSTA Board of Directors about possible changes, additions, and deletions to the bylaws. As part of the review, committee members will review the March 2018 Bylaw Review Committee Report as well as previous motions that may provide some direction for policies and bylaws. The committee should continue to examine them through a Diversity, Equity Inclusion (DEI) and decolonizing lens.

Reporting

The Committee reports to the Board of Directors.

Phase II has focused on operational guidelines, policies and new as well as updated legislation. Another area of focus for the group will be to review our current meeting structures, with a focus to create efficiencies as well as to determine how BCSTA can decolonize some of our processes. This will require review from our committees and membership.

This Phase II work is a substantial modernization of the bylaws since much of the language was written long ago and both legislative frameworks and practices have changed. As the committee proceeds, referrals to current Standing Committees and working groups for advice and feedback will be needed (e.g., Diversity Equity and Inclusion, Indigenous Education Committee etc.)

Timelines and Meeting Frequency

Meetings will be at the call of the Chair and may be in person or on Zoom.

The Committee will submit its first phase of recommendations along with bylaw revisions to the Board of Directors no later than December 2023. The committee will share at that time the projected timeline and costs for the second phase.

Subsequent Scope of Work – 2024-2025

For Phase II of the work, the focus continued to be updating language. There was a specific intentional focus on the following bylaws:

- Membership (Bylaw 1);
- Provincial Council (Bylaws 6 and 7);
- Delegates and Voting Powers at General Meetings (Bylaw 9);
- Committees (Bylaw 11); and
- District Branch Associations (Bylaw 19).

While this seems like a relatively small number of bylaws, given the nature of the bylaw's structure there are numerous referrals and cross-references that also required checking and updating. To give one example, in looking at the bylaws 6 and 7 concerning Provincial Council, there are 54 references to Provincial Council throughout the bylaws, so each of these required careful attention and updating if appropriate. As a result, there are many changes in the documents as presented. A number of these changes do not alter the intent of the bylaw and are housekeeping in nature. As members see the full AGM package, this range and scope of cross-referencing will be apparent.

BCSTA Bylaw Review Committee Phase II Report

January 2025

The committee carefully reviewed and determined what they considered to be housekeeping as opposed to a substantive change to a bylaw. The committee defined housekeeping as the following:

- Housekeeping tidying up (spelling, grammar, in the context of amending bylaws or policies, housekeeping refers to changes that are minor, non-substantive, and administrative in nature). These amendments don't alter the intent, scope, or function of the bylaw or policy but are typically made to clarify, correct, or update the document.
- Housekeeping amendments should not change the policy's substance or introduce new provisions. They are typically approved more quickly or with less discussion than substantive amendments since they maintain the existing intent and purpose of the document.

As stated earlier, while the number of changes may seem significant, this is about modernizing the language and aligning bylaws with existing practice and current legislation.

All proposed changes have been vetted by the committee as well as have been reviewed and adjusted by legal counsel. With the nature of this ongoing work, and following up on the 2024 AGM, the Ad Hoc Bylaw Committee has met to consider Phase II of this work on:

- June 24
- September 16
- October 11
- October 28
- November 23

There have been several other meetings to ensure that the work of the Committee is aligned with the direction of the Board of Directors, with other BCSTA Committees and with membership, as well as ensuring alignment with legal opinions and advice.

Bylaw Revisions to Date

Given the modernization of the language and as a result numerous changes, for the purposes of this document, when a Bylaw is presented, the following formatting applies for ease of reading:

- paragraphs that are untouched remain black;
- paragraphs with housekeeping changes are blue; and
- any new paragraphs, or substantive changes are red.

At the beginning of each section, there is a "Scope of Changes" description. Prior to reading the bylaw, this Scope portion details the nature of the changes proposed in the bylaw and the rationale for the changes.

Bylaw 1: Membership - Scope of Changes

- Changes to this section include several housekeeping changes.
- Most significantly, there is an addition of a new clause 1 c) Affiliate Membership.
- Yukon has expressed an interest in joining BCSTA. Yukon is closely aligned with BC and uses
 BC's curriculum and are currently members of the Alberta School Board Association.
- The language presented includes how other organizations could join as Affiliates and their scope of involvement.
- This language was developed after significant research and review of similar bylaws across the provinces and territories.

1. Membership

- a) Membership in the Association shall be open to all boards of education within the province and to any francophone education authority, established or continued under the School Act (collectively "Boards").
- b) The membership year shall be July 1 -June 30. A Board which is a member for any part of the membership year is liable for the year's full membership dues, unless all or part of such dues are otherwise excused by the Provincial Council of the Association. (Notice of intent to resign from the Association must be given in writing to the Chief Executive Officer, and to be effective for the following membership year must be received by the Chief Executive Officer three (3) months prior to expiration of the current membership year or dues for the subsequent year will be payable to the Association.)

c) Affiliate Membership

- i. Affiliate Membership in the Association may be granted to boards in other jurisdictions who serve K-12 public education.
- ii. Boards wishing to be Affiliate Members must have operated for more than 5 years, unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors, and must meet the requirements of their provincial, territorial or other responsible government to exist as a board with oversight of public education in their jurisdiction.
- iii. A board wishing to be an Affiliate Member must apply for membership in writing to the Association's Board of Directors.
- iv. The dues for Affiliate Membership shall be established by the Provincial Council from time to time, considering, non-exclusively, processes established for determining dues and fees for Boards, the services and benefits to membership provided to the Affiliate Member, and such other matters as determined to be relevant by the Provincial Council and Board of Directors.
- v. An Affiliate Member that wishes to withdraw their Affiliate Membership must provide at least 3 months' notice to the Board of Directors.
- vi. Affiliate Members have such privileges of membership as are granted to Boards except as otherwise limited by the Board of Directors. Affiliate Members shall not have the right to vote, nor shall trustees of Affiliate Members be able to hold office on the Association's Board of Directors.
- vii. Affiliate Membership is granted and may be terminated by the Board of Directors in its absolute discretion.

- d) Honourary Life Membership
 - i. Honourary Life Members are current or former British Columbia school trustees who:
 - a. Have been elected to the office of President of the Association;
 - b. The Board of Directors has decided to honour by conferring Honourary Life Membership. A trustee must have accumulated at least 20 years of service as a trustee for a public Board of Education that is a current member in good standing of the Association in order to be considered by the Board of Directors for this honor; or,
 - c. The Association has, by extraordinary resolution in accordance with the provisions of Bylaw 10, decided to honour for their distinguished service to the Association.
 - ii. Registration fees for general meetings shall be waived for Honourary Life Members.
 - iii. All who are conferred life memberships prior to the close of the 2018 Annual General Meeting shall have one (1) vote, but not in addition to their vote as a delegate of a member Board, and not in addition to the full quota of votes cast by any Board of which they may be a member. All who are conferred life memberships after the close of the 2018 Annual General Meeting will not be entitled to vote unless they are entitled to vote as school trustee delegates of member Boards of Education.
 - iv. Rescission of Honourary Life Membership the Board of Directors may rescind the Honourary Life Membership of any individual for conduct which, in the opinion of the Association's Board of Directors, is not in the best interest of the Association, or which brings or may bring the Association into disrepute.

Bylaw 2: Directors - Scope of Changes

- These are housekeeping changes which include changing the name of the Bylaw to align with commonly used terminology under corporate legislation such as the Business Corporations Act. Although the Association does not fall under this Act, legal counsel recommended the wording change as "directors" are elected by membership with ultimate organizational oversight, and "officers" are typically the staff responsible for the operation of the Association, such as the Chief Executive Officer and Director of Finance.
- 2 b) changes the wording of the Minister of Education's patronage of the Association to reflect the Minister of Education's choice whether to be "Honourary President" or not. Accordingly, the change is from the Minister of Education "shall be" the Honourary President to the Minister of Education is "invited to be" Honourary President.
- Given that the title of Minister of Education has changed from time to time, the change to "Minister of the Government responsible for..." is long but gives flexibility.
- Additional housekeeping included- moving language on the appointment of members to committees to be incorporated as part of Bylaw 12 (Committees).

2. Directors

- a) The Directors of the Association, with voting rights are:
 - i. The President:
 - ii. The Vice-President; and
 - iii. Five (5) elected Directors.
- b) The Directors of the Association without voting rights are:
 - i. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), who shall be the Secretary-Treasurer;
 - ii. The Minister of the Government of British Columbia responsible for K-12 public education who is invited to be the honourary President of the Association; and
 - iii. The Immediate Past President, should they so agree, who shall act in an advisory capacity. The Immediate Past President shall only hold this position for one year following the election of a new President.
- c) Each Director, other than the honourary President, the Chief Executive Officer and the Immediate Past President, shall be elected at the Annual General Meeting.
- d) An elected Director shall serve a term of two (2) years commencing at the close of the Annual General Meeting at which such individual is elected and concluding at the earlier of:
 - The close of the second Annual General Meeting held subsequent to such Director's election; or
 - ii. When they cease to be a trustee serving on a member Board.
 - iii. A Director whose Board ceases to be a member solely by reason of being abolished by legislative action, may remain in office until the next general meeting following the abolition.
- e) The President shall call meetings of the Provincial Council at least twice in each year between Annual General Meetings and of the Board of Directors at least ten (10) times per year.

- f) The President shall be the chair of meetings of the Board of Directors, and the President, or such person as they designate, shall be the chair of meetings of the Provincial Council.
- g) The Vice-President shall perform all duties of the President at such times as the President is unable to perform them.

Bylaw 3: Chief Executive Officer - Scope of Changes

- There are housekeeping changes in Bylaws 2 and 3 that separate the Directors (elected) from Staff (hired).
- This simplifies and clarifies the distinction between staff and elected officials.

3. Chief Executive Officer

The Board of Directors shall hire the Chief Executive Officer (CEO). The CEO shall have the responsibility to carry out the day-to-day operations of the Association.

Bylaw 4: Elections for Board of Directors - Scope of Changes

 These housekeeping changes in this bylaw include moving the language from Bylaw 15 – Elections of Officers, and reordering.

4. Elections for Board of Directors

Elections for the Directors shall be conducted at an Annual General Meeting.

- a) Any trustee of a member Board is eligible for election as a Director of the Association
- b) Directors elected at Annual General Meetings are elected for two-year terms.
- c) The nomination of candidates for election as Association Directors shall be submitted at least thirty (30) days prior to the Annual General Meeting when elections are scheduled to take place, addressed to the Chief Executive Officer. A nomination may specify the office or offices for which the nominee wishes to stand for election. Nominations must be supported by two (2) trustees of member Boards.
- d) A Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors sixty (60) days prior to the AGM. If, by thirty (30) days prior to the Annual General Meeting, nominations have not been received for all offices, the Nominating Committee shall be responsible for nominating candidates for the vacant office(s).
- e) The Association shall distribute or make available the candidates' statements package to all members at least two (2) weeks prior to the Annual General Meeting. Candidates may submit a candidate statement (maximum 500 words) and a photograph twenty (20) days prior to the Annual General Meeting.

- f) Additional nominations shall be called for at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting's opening ceremonies. Nominations shall then be closed. If a candidate previously nominated for a position is defeated in the election, the candidate may be nominated for other positions immediately prior to the election for other offices.
- g) The CEO shall appoint a Chief Returning Officer. At least three (3) scrutineers shall be appointed by the Chief Returning Officer.
- h) Before any ballot is taken, any person nominated may decline their nomination or withdraw their name from consideration.
- i) Should any candidate for the office of President or Vice-President receive a clear majority of the votes cast upon the first ballot, they shall be declared to be elected. Should no candidate receive such a clear majority, the candidate receiving the lowest number of votes on the first ballot shall be dropped from the list and a second ballot shall be conducted. If necessary, subsequent ballots shall be held in like manner until one (1) candidate receives a clear majority of the votes cast and such candidate shall thereupon be declared to be elected.
- j) In the election of Directors, there shall be sequential rounds of weighted balloting as defined in these bylaws. The following procedures apply:
 - i. Ballots shall be issued for each vote. For each round of balloting a voter may mark a vote for one or more candidates, not to exceed the number of candidates to be elected;
 - ii. To be elected, a candidate must receive a number of votes equal to or greater than 50 percent of the validly cast ballots;
 - iii. Candidates are elected in order of the number of votes received, provided they receive more than the threshold number of votes.
 - iv. If no candidate is elected on a ballot, the candidate with the lowest number of votes is eliminated and a subsequent ballot with the remaining candidates shall be held.
 - v. Further rounds of balloting continue until the required number of Directors is elected.

Bylaw 5: Vacancies on the Board of Directors - Scope of Changes

These are all housekeeping changes with minor wording changes and updating.

5. Vacancies on the Board of Directors

Should the office of the President, Vice-President or any elected Directors become vacant between Annual General Meetings, the following process shall apply:

- a) The Board of the Directors, in accordance with Bylaw 6, may call a General Meeting to fill, through an election of the membership, any vacant position on the board.
- b) General meetings for the purposes of filling a vacancy, other than the Annual General Meeting, may be held virtually.

- c) If the office of President falls vacant the Vice-President shall advance to the office of the President.
- d) If the office of Vice-President falls vacant, an interim Vice-President shall be elected by the Board of Directors from its own members who shall serve until the election of a new Vice President at the next General Meeting.
- e) If the Director serving as interim Vice-President is not elected to that position at the next General Meeting, they will revert to their position of Director with the corresponding remaining term they would hold as director by virtue of their election at a prior Annual General Meeting.
- f) Any vacancy existing amongst the Directors shall be resolved at the same General Meeting.
- g) Should the time period from a vacancy occurring until the next Annual General Meeting exceed nine months, the Board of Directors shall call a General Meeting for the purposes of electing a new Director.

Bylaw 6: Board of Directors' Duties and Powers - Scope of Changes

 These changes are all housekeeping changes to modernize the language and bring more consistency to the bylaws.

6. Board of Directors' Duties and Powers

- a) The Board of Directors shall select and appoint the Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Officer shall report to the Board of Directors. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-day staffing and operations of the Association including personnel and human resource matters and may employ such other employees as they deem advisable, subject to the general oversight of the Board.
- b) The Board of Directors may take positions on emergent issues consistent with the policies established by the members of the Association. Where no current policy exists, the Board shall exercise its own discretion in representing the Association on emergent issues and shall inform the membership of action(s) taken.
- c) The Board of Directors shall regularly update the Provincial Council on the activities of the Association.
- d) Copies of minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors shall be distributed to the Provincial Council and be available to members on the BCSTA website.
- e) The Board of Directors shall prepare proposed agendas for meetings of the Provincial Council.
- f) The Board of Directors may call a General Meeting of the Association at any time.

- g) The Board of Directors may enter into contracts on behalf of the Association and shall generally carry on the business of the Association. The Board of Directors of the Association may acquire or lease property, but prior to doing so shall seek the advice of Provincial Council
- h) The Board of Directors shall have the power to adopt Operational Guidelines to provide ongoing guidance to the Board of Directors and to the Chief Executive Officer of the Association with respect to carrying on the business of the Association.

Bylaw 8: Provincial Council Duties and Powers - Scope of Changes

- Provincial Council was established in 1987 the same year that the Royal Commission on Education was initiated.
- It was formed to ensure that the interests of all boards are represented in BCSTA's governance and to facilitate an ongoing dialogue around issues facing the association and its member boards across the province.
- As there are regular meetings with board chairs, branch presidents, as well as the ability to call a general meeting, it is clear that important matters for members can happen outside of the Annual General Meeting and Provincial Council.
- The ability to deal with emerging issues in current times is easily facilitated by the use of virtual meetings.
- Emergent issues previously brought forward by Provincial Council have been challenging as late motions did not permit time for individual representatives to review and discuss the motion, leaving it to an individual representative to make a decision without feedback from the entire board.
- It was recommended that the voice of all trustees on emergent matters carries greater weight and should be the path for provincial issues.
- These changes focus the intent of the work of Provincial Council to focus on budget and finances of the Association.
- The changes include having the language of quorum mirror the language of an Annual General Meeting.

8. Provincial Council Duties and Powers

- a) The Provincial Council's responsibilities are to support the Board of Directors in advancing the mission and goals of the Association and to review and approve the Annual Budget of the Association as presented by the Finance and Audit Committee.
- b) The Provincial Council shall approve the annual budget of the Association, the total fees to be collected from member Boards, and the criteria for the determination of individual member fees, which criteria shall be used by the Board of Directors when establishing the appropriate fee for each member.
- c) The schedule of meetings of the Provincial Council will be published annually by the Board of Directors. Absent exceptional circumstances, meetings of the Provincial Council shall be held three (3) times a year, one of such meetings to be held in conjunction with the Annual General Meeting and twice between Annual General Meetings.

- d) Quorum for Provincial Council meetings shall be representatives of 50% of the member Board and 50% of the Association's Branches.
- e) The Provincial Council shall approve payment of honoraria to the President, Vice-President, Directors, and the immediate past President, and shall approve the criteria for payment of out-of-pocket expenses of BCSTA Directors, Provincial Council members and staff when incurred on Association business.
- f) The Provincial Council may provide advice to the Board of Directors in acquiring or leasing real and personal property.
- g) The Board of Directors shall seek the approval of the Provincial Council regarding the investment of funds in the forms permitted by Bylaw 15 Investment and Borrowing Powers.

Bylaw 10: Submission of General Meeting Motions - Scope of Changes

These changes are housekeeping in nature including reordering the bylaws.

10. Submission of General Meeting Motions

- a) Motions to be dealt with by General Meetings shall be forwarded to the Chief Executive Officer by member Boards, the Professional Learning Committee, the Indigenous Education Committee, Branch Associations, or the Board of Directors.
- b) Notice of all substantive motions to be dealt with at a General Meeting shall be forwarded to the Chief Executive Officer not less than sixty (60) days prior to the opening date of the General Meeting and shall be transmitted by the Chief Executive Officer to member Boards not later than thirty (30) days prior to the opening date of the General Meeting, subject to any rejection, consolidation, alternation or amendment that may be considered necessary by the Legislative Committee.
- c) A Notice of Motion submitted later than 60 days prior to the opening date of the General Meeting shall be considered by the General Meeting when such a motion deals with emergent matters arising subsequent to that date. Prior to any consideration by the General Meeting, such motion must be referred to the Legislative Committee to determine, by simple majority, whether to present such motion to the General Meeting.
 - Any motion not submitted to the Legislative Committee seven (7) days in advance of the General Meeting will be referred to the Board of Directors, which in its absolute discretion, may determine whether the motion will be considered at the General Meeting.
- d) A Notice of Motion for an extraordinary resolution shall be given in writing to the Chief Executive Officer not less than seventy (70) days prior to the opening date of the General Meeting at which such motions are to be considered, and shall be transmitted by the Chief Executive Officer to member Boards not less than thirty (30) days prior to the opening date of the General Meeting.

- e) Notwithstanding, the foregoing Notices of Motion(s) by the Board of Directors must be submitted to the Chief Executive Officer at least thirty (30) days prior to the opening date of the General Meeting.
- f) A two-thirds (2/3) majority weighted vote shall be necessary to pass an extraordinary resolution.
- g) Should a motion sponsor wish to appeal a Legislative Committee or Board of Directors decision ruling a late motion out of order under section c), the following procedure shall be followed:
 - Written notice of intention to appeal the Legislative Committee or Board of Directors decision must be forwarded to the Chief Executive Officer within 24 hours of notification of the Legislative Committee or Board of Directors decision
 - ii. The Chief Executive Officer shall place the appeal of the decision before the General Meeting. Those present will then decide, by simple majority vote, whether or not to sustain the Legislative Committee's or Board of Directors decision.
 - iii. In the event that the Legislative Committee's or Board of Director's decision is not sustained by the membership on a simple majority vote, then the late motion will be included in the order of business.
 - iv. Should the Legislative Committee edit, reject, correlate, order or consolidate any notices of motion submitted within the time frames set out in bylaw 10(b), the motion sponsor will be notified of the decision and the motion sponsor shall have the right to challenge the Legislative Committee's decision at the opening of the General Meeting proceedings. The motion sponsor shall advise the Chief Executive Officer of its challenge within 7 days of the Legislative Committee's decision so that the original motion and the Legislative Committee's rationale can be published in advance of the General Meeting.
- h) Nothing herein shall limit the Board of Director's ability to submit a substantive motion even though notice has not been given. Such a motion does not require approval before it can be considered.

Bylaw 11: Delegates and Voting Powers at General Meetings - Scope of Changes

- Extraordinary Motion 2 from the 2023 AGM was referred to the Bylaw Review Committee, and it has been reviewed both in Phase I and Phase II of the committee work.
- A significant amount of time, research and development was undertaken to finalize wording for the proposed revisions.
- This bylaw has several housekeeping changes, including an explanation on how the weighted ballot is tabulated and demonstrates that the current weighting does account for giving voice to smaller districts (e.g. a district with 84,000 students could have 336 votes if they were to receive one vote per 250 students as per the first category but the current weighted formula does not contemplate distributing ballots by a singular ratio).
- While there was much discussion on values of the weight of ballots, research across the province and country with other associations, unions and organizations that have weighted ballots, all indicated when they were used and in most instances, a weight by population was the common factor.
- A substantive change was the addition of 11f) which requires a two thirds majority for any amendments to any extraordinary motions, rather than the 50% rule as has been past practice.
- As we have growing districts, a further opportunity for review when a member Board exceeds 100,000 students is also included in the changes.
- This housekeeping includes moving the requirement for bylaw amendments receiving 2/3rds of a vote as it is already captured in renumbered Bylaw 19 (Amendments to Bylaws).

11. Delegates and Voting Powers at General Meetings

- a) The President shall appoint three (3) trustees attending as delegates at the General Meeting to act as a Credentials Committee for the purpose of validating the credentials of delegates and to report to the general meeting the number of duly accredited delegates present and the number of votes they carry. The Credentials Committee will report to the General Meeting at the beginning of each business day.
- b) Delegates must be school trustees duly accredited by Boards of which they are members.
- c) Depending on the subject matter under consideration voting may be:
 - i. By show of hands or individual electronic vote; or
 - ii. By weighted ballot (electronic or paper).
- d) All substantive motions shall be decided by simple majority (50% +1).
- e) Weighted ballot voting shall be used for:
 - i. Election of BCSTA Directors
 - ii. Changes to Foundational Statements and BCSTA Bylaws and
 - iii. Approval of any Association petition to the Legislature for changes to the *British Columbia School Trustees Association Act*.
- f) Amendments to extraordinary motions require a two thirds (2/3) majority vote, not by weighted ballot.

- g) Any member Board which is not represented at any General Meeting may, by proxy in writing, grant to a delegate of any other member Board the right to vote on its behalf with respect to ballot votes and may specify on its proxy how such delegate shall vote on matters before the General Meeting.
- h) For the purposes of determining the number of votes allocated to a Board for weighted ballot, the following principles apply:
 - i. The number of votes allocated to a Board is calculated based on actual headcount (not full time equivalent) student enrolment as at the most recent date established under the *School Act* for the reporting of student population;
 - ii. The number of votes allocated to a Board increases as the headcount of the board increases:
 - iii. The number of additional students required to move to a higher number of votes increases as enrolment increases. In other words, a larger number of additional students is required to gain an additional vote for large school districts as compared to small school districts. For clarity, the number of votes allocated to a Board shall increase as follows:
 - a. Boards with less than 250 students receive 1 vote;
 - b. Boards with 250 or more students, but less than 1000 students, receive two votes;
 - c. Boards with 1000 or more students, but less than 2000 students, receive three votes;
 - d. Boards with 2000 or more students, but less than 6000 students, receive four votes;
 - e. Boards with 6000 or more students, but less than 36,000 students, shall receive an additional two votes per 6000 students; and
 - f. Boards with 36,000 or more students shall receive an additional one vote per 12,000 students, to a maximum total of 20 votes.
- i) Accordingly, Boards having an annual enrolment at the most recent date established under the *School Act* for the reporting of student populations, shall have the following number of votes:

1	to	249 students	1 vote
250	to	999 students	2 votes
1,000	to	1,999 students	3 votes
2,000	to	5,999 students	4 votes
6,000	to	11,999 students	6 votes
12,000	to	17,999 students	8 votes
18,000	to	23,999 students	10 votes
24,000	to	29,999 students	12 votes
30,000	to	35,999 students	14 votes
36,000	to	47,999 students	15 votes
48,000	to	59,999 students	16 votes
60,000	to	71,999 students	17 votes
72,000	to	83,999 students	18 votes
84,000	to	95,999 students	19 votes
Over 96,000	20 votes		

The Board of Directors shall initiate a review of the weighted ballot vote allocations when the largest member board exceeds 100,000 students.

Bylaw 12: Committees – Scope of Changes

- Most of the changes in this section are housekeeping in nature and include reordering.
- 12. b) is a significant change in that it removes the Credentials Committee as a Standing Committee and places this Committee in the language of Bylaw 11 (Delegate Voting).

12. Committees

- a) The Association shall have the following standing committees (the "Standing Committees"):
 - i. Legislative Committee
 - ii. Finance and Audit Committee
 - iii. Professional Learning Committee
 - iv. Indigenous Education Committee
- b) New standing committees may only be created by an amendment to these bylaws.
- c) The Board of Directors may establish ad hoc committees for a specific purpose with approved terms of reference which include duration and budget.
- d) The President shall appoint trustees of member Boards to the Standing Committees and ad hoc committees, and to such external committees or bodies where representation from the BCSTA is requested, in their discretion.
- e) The President shall be an ex officio member of all Association committees.
- f) Unless otherwise set out in these bylaws or in any terms of reference or Operational Guidelines for a Standing Committee or ad hoc committee, all trustee members shall be voting members.
- g) All committees are subject to direction from and the oversight of the Board of Directors.
- h) The Board of Directors may establish Operational Guidelines for all Standing Committees and ad hoc committees, and these Operational Guidelines shall be consistent with these Bylaws.
- i) Legislative Committee
 - i. The President shall appoint members to the Legislative Committee within thirty (30) days of assuming office. The Legislative Committee shall consist of not less than three (3) members, one of whom shall be a voting member of the Board of Directors of the Association who shall act as a liaison between the Legislative Committee and the Board of Directors.

- ii. The Legislative Committee shall oversee, prepare and publish motions for the Annual General Meeting consistent with these bylaws and the Association's Operational Guidelines.
- iii. The Legislative Committee may, in its absolute discretion and subject to the decisions of the membership at the Annual General Meeting, edit, reject, correlate, order, consolidate and report upon late notices of motion submitted in accordance with bylaw 10.
- iv. The Legislative Committee is responsible for the maintenance of the Associations' policies and may recommend changes to the Board of Directors for presentation to the membership.

j) Finance and Audit Committee

i. The President shall appoint a Finance and Audit Committee within thirty (30) days of assuming office. The Finance and Audit Committee shall consist of not less than two (2) members and a chair, who shall be a voting member of the Board of Directors of the Association). and shall act as a liaison between the Finance and Audit Committee and the Board of Directors. All trustee members shall have voting privileges.

ii. The Finance and Audit Committee shall:

- a. Monitor the collection of all dues, fees, levies and other revenues on behalf of the Association;
- b. Recommend reasonable controls for the safekeeping of Association assets;
- c. Obtain satisfactory evidence of continuing maintenance of proper financial books and records:
- d. Monitor the expenditures of Association;
- e. Cooperate with the Board of Directors in the preparation of an annual budget for the following fiscal year;
- f. Supervise the calculation and drafting of an annual membership fee scale, in accordance with budget requirements;
- g. Ensure that an inventory of the Association's capital assets is completed at the conclusion of each fiscal year;
- h. Approve BCSTA's draft audited financial statements and report to the Provincial Council as required on the financial status of the Association, substantiated by the audited financial statements;
- i. Review all expenditures in excess of \$5,000; and
- j. Regularly report to both the Board of Directors and the Provincial Council.

k) Professional Learning Committee

- i. The President shall initiate a process to form a Professional Learning Committee within thirty (30) days of assuming office.
- ii. The Professional Learning Committee shall consist of:
 - a. A representative of each branch as elected by each branch following an Annual General Meeting; and

- b. A voting member of the Board of Directors who shall also act as a liaison between the Professional Learning Committee and the Board of Directors
- iii. Should a vacancy occur among the elected members of the Professional Learning Committee, the President may appoint an interim representative from that branch until the branch is able to elect a new representative.
- iv. The Professional Learning Committee shall:
 - a. Support professional learning opportunities at Association events;
 - b. Identify educational issues of concern to Boards and trustees in British Columbia;
 - c. Share knowledge regarding research and policies related to public school education;
 - d. Formulate recommendations for action by the Board of Directors, and the membership at General Meetings on educational matters;
 - e. Establish opportunities for the discussion of education issues; and
 - f. Recommend topics for leadership development seminars.
- l) Indigenous Education Committee
 - i. The President shall appoint an Indigenous Education Committee within thirty (30) days of assuming office. The Indigenous Education Committee shall consist of nine (9) voting members, one of whom shall be a voting member of the Board of Directors who shall act as a liaison between the Indigenous Education Committee and the Board of Directors.

The mandate of the Indigenous Education Committee is understood to encompass issues affecting the education of all students of Indigenous descent.

- ii. The Indigenous Education Committee shall:
 - a. Represent the interests of Boards in Indigenous education matters in cooperation and liaison with rights holders and Indigenous groups;
 - b. Heighten knowledge, awareness and understanding of Indigenous values, cultures and perspectives in the education system;
 - Disseminate information to relevant constituent groups, in order to foster an atmosphere that will promote dialogue at the local level between Boards and Indigenous communities;
 - d. Identify and address issues related to provincial policy and implementation processes that impact on Indigenous education; and
 - e. Develop recommendations on Indigenous education matters, including funding issues and implications, for action by the Professional Learning Committee, and/or Board of Directors, as appropriate.

Bylaw 13: Annual Dues - Scope of Changes

• These changes are housekeeping in nature and include adjusting and updating the wording.

13. Annual Dues

The Board of Directors shall establish and levy annual dues upon all member Boards of Education for each financial year in accordance with the criteria established by the Provincial Council, provided that the total amount so levied does not exceed the amount approved by the Provincial Council for the year concerned.

Bylaw 14: Suspension of Member Boards - Scope of Changes

These changes are housekeeping and include renumbering (was Bylaw 13).

14. Suspension of Member Boards

The Board of Directors may suspend a member Board from participation in the affairs of the Association or exercising any privileges of membership if the member Board has not, within 30 days of receipt of notice in writing that the Board is in arrears of its financial obligations to the Association, satisfied such arrears, until such time as such arrears are remedied and any other conditions imposed by the Board of Directors satisfactorily addressed.

Bylaw 17: Seals - Scope of Changes

Seals are no longer required so this section has been deleted.

17. Seal (delete)

Bylaw 18: District Branch Associations - Scope of Changes

- These changes are to simplify and make the language more succinct.
- The CSF has requested that rather than having all their votes at one branch, that they be able to vote at the branch meetings in the region of the schools and communities they represent.

18. District Branch Associations

- a) Member Boards shall be members of Branches of the Association as established by the Board of Directors ("Branch" or "Branches").
- b) Only Boards that are members of the Association may be members of a Branch.
- c) Branch associations shall have a Constitution, which shall be approved by the Board of Directors.
- d) Any amendments to a Branch Constitution must be approved by the members of the Branch and the Board of Directors.
- e) Branches may submit motions to General Meetings.
- f) The Conseil scolaire francophone de la Columbie -Britannique (CSF) may attend and vote at meetings of Branch Associations where its schools are located.

BCSTA Bylaw Review Committee Phase II Report

January 2025

Bylaw 20: Association Records - Scope of Changes

 These are housekeeping changes that include the deletion to the reference of an audio recording of meetings which was never used.

20. Association Records

The Board of Directors shall ensure that all necessary records of the Association are maintained, including minutes of the Board of Directors meetings and meetings of Provincial Council. Minutes of the meetings and a report of actions will be preserved for a period of not less than three (3) years and will be made available to the membership.

Bylaw 21: Rules of Order - Scope of Changes

These changes are housekeeping in nature, including cleaning up wording.

21. Rules of Order

Except where otherwise inconsistent with these bylaws or the rules of order adopted by a General Meeting or Provincial Council, the current version of *Robert's Rules of Order* shall govern Association meetings.

Bylaw 22: Association Policies and Operational Guidelines - Scope of Changes

- This bylaw is renamed from "Association Policies" and updated to include definitions of Operational Guidelines which support the bylaws.
- In addition, these changes include moving policy responsibilities of the Legislative Committee to Bylaw 12 Committees.

22. Association Policies and Operational Guidelines

- a) Foundational statements shall be established or modified by an extraordinary motion at a general meeting.
- b) Policy resolutions shall be adopted by substantive motion at a general meeting.
- Operational Guidelines for the Association shall be established by the Board of Directors.

Recommendations

As there are many changes, it is recommended that the motions be packaged for ease of deliberation at the 2025 Annual General Meeting. The Ad Hoc Bylaw Committee recommends to the BCSTA Board of Directors that the following extraordinary motions be submitted for consideration by the membership.

Extraordinary Motion number	Old Bylaw(s) under consideration	New Bylaw(s) renumbered	Bylaw title(s)
E1	Bylaw 1	Bylaw 1	Membership
E2 -	Bylaw 2	Bylaw 2	Directors
	Bylaw 3	Bylaw 3	Chief Executive Officer
E 3	Bylaw 15	Bylaw 4	Elections for Board of Directors
	Bylaw 4	Bylaw 5	Vacancies on the Board of Directors
	Bylaw 5	Bylaw 6	Board of Directors' Duties and Powers
E4	Bylaw 7	Bylaw 8	Provincial Council Duties and Powers
E5	Bylaw 10	Bylaw 10	Submission of Motions
E6	Bylaw 9	Bylaw 11	Delegates and Voting Powers at General Meetings
E7	Bylaw 11	Bylaw 12	Committees
	Bylaw 12	Bylaw 13	Annual Dues
E8	Bylaw 13	Bylaw 14	Suspension of Member Boards
	Bylaw 17	Deleted	Seal
	Bylaw 21	Bylaw 20	Association Records
E9 _	Bylaw 19	Bylaw 18	District Branch Associations
	Bylaw 22	Bylaw 21	Rules of Order
	Bylaw 23	Bylaw 22	Association Policies and Operational Guidelines

All grammar, renumbering and spacing will be confirmed once this process is completed.